
Page 1 of 3 
 

 
 
 

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING  
PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING & PARTICIPATION   

 
City Council will Meet Electronically on December 20, 2023 

 
 
Observe and/or Listen to the Meeting (your options to join the meeting are below): 
 
Webinar via the link below: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84451675597?pwd=K21Pc3ovcVdxV2ZqbTFwOXM4VUcrQT09 
Passcode: 668278 

 
Live Stream via YouTube: 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCyN1EJ_-Q22918E9EZimWoQ 
 
Audio Only Call   

Or One tap mobile : 
    +19292056099,,84451675597# US (New York) 
    +13017158592,,84451675597# US (Washington DC) 
Or Telephone: 
    Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location): 
     +1 309 205 3325 US 
    +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
    +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
  
Webinar ID: 844 5167 5597 
    International numbers available: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kxkDDX6bT 

 
Citizen Participation and/or Public Hearing Comments: 
Those who wish to provide a comment during the "Citizen Participation" portion as indicated on the City Council 
agenda; may provide written comments to the City Clerk ahead of the meeting. 
 
ALL written comments must be received no later than 12:00 p.m. the day of the meeting.  
 
Comments may be  sent via email to: councilcomments@ucitymo.org, or mailed to the City Hall – 6801 Delmar 
Blvd. – Attention City Clerk.  Such comments will be provided to City Council prior to the meeting.  Comments will 
be made a part of the official record and made accessible to the public online following the meeting.  
 
Please note, when submitting your comments, a name and address must be provided.  Please also note if your 
comment is on an agenda or non-agenda item. If a name and address are not provided, the provided comment will 
not be recorded in the official record.  

  

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 
VIA VIDEOCONFERENCE 

Wednesday, December 20, 2022 
5:30 p.m. 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84451675597?pwd=K21Pc3ovcVdxV2ZqbTFwOXM4VUcrQT09
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCyN1EJ_-Q22918E9EZimWoQ
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kxkDDX6bT
mailto:councilcomments@ucitymo.org


Page 2 of 3 
 

 

    
 
AGENDA 
 
A.    MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 

B. ROLL CALL 

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

D. PROCLAMATIONS (Acknowledgement) 

E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

F. APPOINTMENTS to BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

G. SWEARING IN TO BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

H. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (Total of 15 minutes allowed) 
The public may also submit written comments must be received no later than 12:00 p.m. the day of the meeting.  Comments may be  sent 
via email to:  councilcomments@ucitymo.org, or mailed to the City Hall – 6801 Delmar Blvd. – Attention City Clerk.  Such comments will 
be provided to City Council prior to the meeting.  Comments will be made a part of the official record and made accessible to the public 
online following the meeting. Please note, when submitting your comments, a name and address must be provided.  Please also not if 
your comment is on an agenda or non-agenda item. If a name and address are not provided, the provided comment will not be recorded in 
the official record. 
 
I. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

J. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

K. CONSENT AGENDA (1 voice vote required) 

1. MS Office 365 Renewal 
 

L. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT –  (voice vote on each item as needed) 

M. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  (2nd and 3rd readings – roll call vote required) 

N. NEW BUSINESS 
Resolutions   (voice vote required) 
Bills   (Introduction and 1st reading - no vote required) 

1. BILL  9532  -  AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ZONING CODE SECTIONS 400.760.D, 400.780.E, 
400.1190.B AND 400.2130 OF THE UNIVERSITY CITY MUNICIPAL CODE, RELATING OR APPLICABLE 
TO PLANNED DEVELOPMENTS, BY ADDING PROVISIONS ON MINIMUM OFF-STREET PARKING 
AND LOADING SPACES IN ALL PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICTS ("PD"), AND PROVISIONS ON 
FLOOR AREA RATIOS, MINIMUM PERIMETER BUFFER AREAS AND SETBACKS AND SCREENING 
IN PLANNED DEVELOPMENT - MIXED USE DISTRICTS ("PD-M") 
  

2. BILL 9533 - AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 400.070 OF THE UNIVERSITY CITY 
MUNICIPAL CODE, RELATING TO THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP, BY AMENDING SAID MAP SO 
AS TO CHANGE THE CLASSIFICATION OF PROPERTY AT 6630-6654 DELMAR BOULEVARD 
FROM CORE COMMERCIAL DISTRICT ("CC") TO PLANNED DEVELOPMENT - MIXED USE 
DISTRICT ("PD-M"). 
 

3. BILL 9534 - AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL PLAT FOR A MAJOR SUBDIVISION OF A 
TRACT OF LAND TO BE KNOWN AS "LOCAL UNIVERSITY CITY." 

 

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 
VIA VIDEOCONFERENCE 

Wednesday, December, 2023 
5:30 p.m. 

mailto:councilcomments@ucitymo.org


Page 3 of 3 
 

O. COUNCIL REPORTS/BUSINESS 
1. Boards and Commission appointments needed 
2. Council liaison reports on Boards and Commissions 
3. Boards, Commissions and Task Force minutes 
4. Other Discussions/Business 

 
P. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION (continued if needed) 

Q. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

R. EXECUTIVE SESSION (roll call vote required) 
Motion to go into a Closed Session according to Missouri Revised Statutes 610.021 (1) Legal actions, causes 
of action or litigation involving a public governmental body and any confidential or privileged communications 
between a public governmental body or its representatives or attorneys. 

 
S. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The public may also observe via: 
Live Stream via YouTube: 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCyN1EJ_-Q22918E9EZimWoQ 
 
 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCyN1EJ_-Q22918E9EZimWoQ


CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

CA20231220-01

MS Office 365 Renewal 

Brooke A. Smith IT
Consent No 

City Manager recommends approval. 

The Technology Services account will be reduced by $40,921.37

$$40,921.37 01-18-11 6560

Technology Services Technology Services

This is a contract renewal for year two of a three year contract for MS Office 365 licenses.  

This agenda item asks the Council to approve the year 2 renewal of MS Office 365 suite of 
services which include email and Microsoft Office Suite applications.  

Renewal Invoice 

Prudent Fiscal Management 

City Manager, Gregrory Rose December 20, 2023

K - 1 - 1



K - 1 - 2



K - 1 - 3



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

NB20231220-01

TXT 23-04 – Application for a Zoning Text Amendment to amend sections 400.760, 400.780, 
400.1190, and 400.2130 in the zoning code.

John L. Wagner                                                       Planning and Development                    

New Bus - Bill 9532 yes

I recommend approval of the four text amendments, as reflected in the attached letter from the 
developer if they intend to meet our parking standards (see attached).  The letter from Subtext 
was received after the Planning Commission considered the proposed text amendments.

N/A

N/A

At the Plan Commission meeting on December 6, 2023, the Plan Commission voted 
unanimously to approve the first three (3) of the four text amendments in TXT 23-04. The 
fourth amendment, relative to Section 400.2130G, was not recommended for approval by the 
Plan Commission, affirming the October 25, 2023, recommendation on Section 400.2130G. 
 
                                                             

Attached are the Letter from Subtext, the Plan Commission Transmittal Letter, Staff Report from the 
December 6, 2023 Plan Commission meeting - amended to include for the City Council the Plan 
Commission's recommendation, and a Draft Ordinance. 

Economic Development, Encourage High-quality Growth, Improved Infrastructure, 

City Manager, Gregrory Rose December 20, 2023

N - 1 - 1



N - 1 - 2



  
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
December 6, 2023 
 
 
Ms. LaRette Reese 
City Clerk 
City of University City 
6801 Delmar Boulevard 
University City, MO 63130 
 
 
RE: Zoning Text Amendment – TXT 23-04 

 

Dear Ms. Reese, 

At a regularly scheduled meeting on December 6, 2023, at 6:30 p.m. in the 5th Floor 
Council Chambers at City Hall (6801 Delmar Boulevard) the Plan Commission 
considered the application of Subtext Acquisitions, LLC for a Zoning Text Amendment 
to amend sections 400.760, 400.780, 400.1190, and 400.2130 in the zoning code. 
  
The Plan Commission voted unanimously to approve the first three (3) of the four text 
amendments in TXT 23-04. The fourth amendment, relative to Section 400.2130G, was 
not recommended for approval by the Plan Commission, affirming the October 25, 2023 
recommendation on Section 400.2130G. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Margaret Holly, Chairperson 
University City Plan Commission 
 

Plan Commission 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168   
 

N - 1 - 3



 

TXT-23-04 – Staff Memo 
Page 1 of 4 

 

Department of Planning and Development 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 505-8500, Fax: (314) 862-3168 

MEMO (UPDATED FOR DECEMBER 6, 2023) 
*Updates to this staff report are indicated in bold, blue text* 

City Council 
 

Meeting Date December 20, 2023 (Presented October 25, 2023 and December 6, 2023) 

File Number TXT-23-04 

Council District n/a 

Applicant Subtext Acquisitions, LLC 

Request Approval of Text Amendment to sections 400.760, 400.780, 400.1190, 
and 400.2130 in the zoning code 

 

 
Comprehensive Plan Conformance:  
[ X ] Yes  [  ] No      [  ] No reference 
 
Staff Recommendation:    
[  ] Approval [ X ] Approval with Conditions   [  ] Denial 
 
Attachments: 

A. Proposed Text Amendment (only Section 400.2130 is attached to this revised memo, since the 
other Sections in the amendment are not affected) 

 
 
Request 
The applicant, Subtext Acquisitions, LLC, is requesting approval of a text amendment to various sections 
of the zoning code. A recommendation and action are needed in advance of Plan Commission and City 
Council recommendation of REZ-23-02, an application for Planned Development – Mixed-Use. Below is a 
summary of each provision proposed to be amended and the purpose: 
 

• 400.760(D) – This subsection describes the permitted uses for Planned Development – Mixed-Use 
(PD-M). Currently, there is no provision for allowing elevator-type dwellings with a floor area ratio 
(FAR) of greater than three (3.0). The applicant is concurrently proposing a mixed-use 
development (PD-M) with elevator-type dwellings and an overall FAR of 3.69. The proposed text 
amendment would allow elevator-type dwellings with an FAR of greater than 3.0 to be designated 
as permitted uses only through the PD-M procedure. The Plan Commission and City Council will 
retain their authority to evaluate the appropriateness of the use and intensity and determine 
whether to approve or deny, or approve with conditions, the use and intensity. 

• 400.780(E) – This subsection describes the dimensional regulations for Planned Development – 
Mixed-Use (PD-M). The proposed amendment would allow the Plan Commission and City Council 
to waive perimeter buffer requirements (which can be up to 50 feet wide) for PD-M developments 
specifically in the Delmar Loop, when deemed appropriate. This proposed amendment recognizes 
that requiring such buffers can be burdensome for development in the Delmar Loop, where space 

N - 1 - 4



 

TXT-23-04 – Staff Memo 
Page 2 of 4 

 

Department of Planning and Development 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 505-8500, Fax: (314) 862-3168 

is limited, and that the buffers are not compatible with the character of the Delmar Loop. The 
proposed amendment also defines the Delmar Loop for the purposes of the subsection. 

• 400.1190(B) – This subsection requires an increase in setbacks (10’) and screening (privacy fence) 
when residential developments or multi-family developments abut commercial uses. The 
proposed amendment would allow the Plan Commission and City Council to waive the increased 
setback and screening for developments in the Delmar Loop when deemed appropriate. Similar 
to the above reasoning, this proposed amendment recognizes that requiring increased setbacks 
and screening in the Delmar Loop is not consistent with the character of existing development in 
the Delmar Loop. The proposed amendment also defines the Delmar Loop for purposes of the 
subsection.  

• 400.2130 – This section sets forth various exceptions to the minimum off-street parking 
requirements. The proposed amendment allows the Plan Commission and City Council to modify 
the parking requirements for developments going through the Planned Development procedure 
without also requiring a Conditional Use Permit (CUP). As currently written, most of the 
exceptions in 400.2130 can only be granted with a CUP, even if a proposed development is already 
going through the Planned Development process. The amendment would also allow the Plan 
Commission and City Council to approve greater modification of parking requirements based on 
evidence provided by the applicant, including industry data and analysis of parking demands for 
the specific uses. While Planned Developments requesting modification to the parking 
requirements would not be required to obtain a CUP for a parking reduction, they would still be 
required to meet the CUP review criteria. 
The proposed text amendment has been revised (see attached) to change this provision, which 
would allow greater modification from the parking requirements beyond what is currently 
allowed in the code. Instead, this provision will simply allow existing parking reductions in 
Section 400.2130 to be authorized under the Plan Development procedure. Currently, the code 
only allows some of these reductions through the Conditional Use Permit procedure.  

 
Process – Required City Approvals 
Plan Commission.  Section 400.3180 of the zoning code requires that the Plan Commission report to the 
City Council its recommendation on any application after receipt of the staff review report. The Zoning 
Administrator shall forward a copy of the Plan Commission's recommendation to the Historic Preservation 
Commission. 
 
City Council.  Section 400.3190 of the zoning code requires that text amendment applications be reviewed 
by City Council for final decision, subsequent to a recommendation from Plan Commission. The City 
Council shall hold a public hearing before acting on any application for amendment. 
 
Plan Commission Meeting 

At the Plan Commission meeting on December 6, 2023, the Plan Commission voted unanimously to 
approve the first three (3) of the four text amendments in TXT 23-04. The fourth amendment, relative 
to Section 400.2130G, was not recommended for approval by the Plan Commission, affirming the 
October 25, 2023, recommendation on Section 400.2130G. 
 
 
 

N - 1 - 5



 

TXT-23-04 – Staff Memo 
Page 3 of 4 

 

Department of Planning and Development 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 505-8500, Fax: (314) 862-3168 

Amend Section 400.760.D: 
  
D.    Planned Development — Mixed Use (PD-M). 

1. Permitted land uses and developments shall be established in the conditions of the ordinance 
adopted by the City Council governing the particular planned development — mixed use district. 
Specific uses shall include those uses designated as permitted, accessory, or conditional uses in 
any of the residential districts, and/or in the "LC", "GC" and "CC" commercial districts. 

2. In addition to those uses included in Subsection (D)(1) of this Section, the following uses may be 
designated as permitted uses and established as such in the ordinance governing the particular 
planned development — mixed use district: 

a.  Attached single-family dwellings; 
b.  Patio dwellings; 
c.  Zero lot line residential developments;                                                                                   
d. Dwellings, elevator-type, with a F.A.R. greater than three (3).  

  
3. It is anticipated that the above uses will be combined in order to qualify as "PD-M" district. 

  
 
Amend Section 400.780.E: 

E Planned Development — Mixed Use (PD-M). "PD-M" developments shall incorporate the 
regulations set forth in both Subsections dealing specifically with "PD-R" and "PD-C" 
developments, except that the minimum perimeter buffer area may be reduced or not 
required if the "PD-M" development is on Delmar Boulevard between Kingsland Avenue and 
the eastern municipal limits, the broadly described boundaries of the University City Loop 
special business district established in Section 120.900. If an unresolved conflict between those 
regulations occurs (such as between common open space versus site coverage), the applicant 
shall set forth the reasons for such discrepancy and the proposed resolution. Any discrepancies 
between the two (2) sets of regulations and the resolution thereof shall be set forth in the map 
amendment ordinance and/or the resolution approving the development. The resolution 
thereof shall be pursuant to staff recommendation or as set forth by the Plan Commission in the 
map amendment ordinance. 

  
 
Amend Section 400.1190.B:  
  

B. In situations where a residential subdivision (more than three (3) lots) or other multiple dwelling 
unit development is constructed on a site that is abutting or adjacent to commercial or an "IC" 
zoned lot, the developer of the residential subdivision or development shall provide the 
following increase in setbacks and screening: 

1. The minimum setback for the principal residential buildings shall be increased by ten 
(10) feet along the common property line separating the residential and commercial or 
"IC" Zoning District. A permanent buffer strip of a minimum of ten (10) feet shall be 
established adjacent to and parallel to said common property line(s). This strip shall be 

N - 1 - 6

https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fecode360.com%2fprint%2f28293314%2328293314&c=E,1,LMVUsXD7P4cLoMzCLklQe45wMKBQqZ0dfAV8x2QTaHszO2vtINUwggyEogRvOPMOtSae15oQVfjrnAmdM00P9G0FpdwBCpAfMsoSJc397dJD7-Lftl3htq1S&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fecode360.com%2fprint%2f28293316%2328293316&c=E,1,jwuiMQaYcR8ExYmvJO3_m31Izl-8lo3aHI7fP4QJymjRq0MpmV25gYLTCwcSva-ZhEWqYXI4oLjXSeHKhUZBb7MXuJm3t4ZcgGLbhS5G&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fecode360.com%2fprint%2f28293317%2328293317&c=E,1,dfEnKiwfjvJPDCYJsgHft_asaDJ4PE8SGAfopV-vZaUrjRikY4So_xhyZpjnPV2xJ0Op7FQ6ZIgKsH2yaAnW1KIEvYS3afdfZnaX6Cujtv2H&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fecode360.com%2fprint%2f28293318%2328293318&c=E,1,00j_VXktxfGaU0MDP_B6trYwDjPKkyTF2msQjfH4ctk0rVeGM6kUbCuHI8C3uJSoEDJoIqY5SlgQ9NgiZLmYbEyRFYbgqCp6IDJmDyAasi1_RUW9LoLe&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fecode360.com%2fprint%2f28293786%2328293786&c=E,1,pqVUQrIlW-X7j_ygNQFapTI1eT7sifrNGbwTd5KFPXk6MfQN3rZbCuza7NEFofBrIqJp5kDJ7tKFO-Elry0txT2kD_VAWfyYFBmQ-TG6gWhA6UNHgZtYRVSk&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fecode360.com%2fprint%2f28293786%2328293786&c=E,1,pqVUQrIlW-X7j_ygNQFapTI1eT7sifrNGbwTd5KFPXk6MfQN3rZbCuza7NEFofBrIqJp5kDJ7tKFO-Elry0txT2kD_VAWfyYFBmQ-TG6gWhA6UNHgZtYRVSk&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fecode360.com%2fprint%2f28293786%2328293786&c=E,1,pqVUQrIlW-X7j_ygNQFapTI1eT7sifrNGbwTd5KFPXk6MfQN3rZbCuza7NEFofBrIqJp5kDJ7tKFO-Elry0txT2kD_VAWfyYFBmQ-TG6gWhA6UNHgZtYRVSk&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fecode360.com%2fprint%2f28293786%2328293786&c=E,1,pqVUQrIlW-X7j_ygNQFapTI1eT7sifrNGbwTd5KFPXk6MfQN3rZbCuza7NEFofBrIqJp5kDJ7tKFO-Elry0txT2kD_VAWfyYFBmQ-TG6gWhA6UNHgZtYRVSk&typo=1


 

TXT-23-04 – Staff Memo 
Page 4 of 4 

 

Department of Planning and Development 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 505-8500, Fax: (314) 862-3168 

indicated on the approved subdivision plat and/or development plan and annotated 
with the following statement: "This strip is reserved for landscape screening. The 
placement of buildings or other structures hereon is prohibited."  

2.      Within this buffer strip, there shall be a landscaped area planted with one (1) 
evergreen tree for every twenty (20) lineal feet of common property line. In addition, 
combinations of canopy trees, ornamental  trees and shrubs shall be provided as 
approved by the Zoning Administrator, provided that such landscaping will 
effectively  screen the non-residential uses from the view of the abutting residential 
zoned properties. 

3. In addition, there shall be placed at the property line a neat, clean and maintained sight-
proof fence or wall having a minimum height of six (6) feet, but not more than eight (8) 
feet. 

  
The setbacks and screening in this Subsection may be reduced or not required under the planned 
development procedure in Article IV, Division 11 of this Chapter provided the development is on 
Delmar Boulevard between Kingsland Avenue and the eastern municipal limits, the broadly described 
boundaries of the University City Loop special business district established in Section 120.900.  
  
  
Add Section 400.2130.G: 
  

G.     Planned Developments. Exceptions in this Section authorized under the conditional use 
procedure may be authorized for planned developments under the planned development 
procedure in Article IV, Division 11 of this Chapter, and the same exception standards shall apply 
under either procedure and may be adjusted the City Council to the same extent allowed under 
Section 400.2700.D.2 for conditional uses.  

 
 
 
Staff Recommendation 
Staff recommends approval of the text amendment as amended above. 

N - 1 - 7

https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fecode360.com%2fprint%2f28293786%2328293786&c=E,1,pqVUQrIlW-X7j_ygNQFapTI1eT7sifrNGbwTd5KFPXk6MfQN3rZbCuza7NEFofBrIqJp5kDJ7tKFO-Elry0txT2kD_VAWfyYFBmQ-TG6gWhA6UNHgZtYRVSk&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fecode360.com%2fprint%2f28293786%2328293786&c=E,1,pqVUQrIlW-X7j_ygNQFapTI1eT7sifrNGbwTd5KFPXk6MfQN3rZbCuza7NEFofBrIqJp5kDJ7tKFO-Elry0txT2kD_VAWfyYFBmQ-TG6gWhA6UNHgZtYRVSk&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fecode360.com%2fprint%2f28293786%2328293786&c=E,1,pqVUQrIlW-X7j_ygNQFapTI1eT7sifrNGbwTd5KFPXk6MfQN3rZbCuza7NEFofBrIqJp5kDJ7tKFO-Elry0txT2kD_VAWfyYFBmQ-TG6gWhA6UNHgZtYRVSk&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fecode360.com%2fprint%2f28293787%2328293787&c=E,1,jnbpYUGtwNG2Btic6UKabzHzqbVVfUVlah7D2KiXq7WKL6E6XgqWSgB1l3OGTwgI-79h2NModUnsJ5WcgWTwl6sx_j-AfNDnL3KJVEy0Ew,,&typo=1


Page 1 of 3 
 

INTRODUCED BY:        DATE:   
 
BILL NO.: 9532         ORDINANCE NO.:  
 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ZONING CODE SECTIONS 400.760.D, 400.780.E, 400.1190.B 
AND 400.2130 OF THE UNIVERSITY CITY MUNICIPAL CODE, RELATING OR 
APPLICABLE TO PLANNED DEVELOPMENTS, BY ADDING PROVISIONS ON MINIMUM 
OFF-STREET PARKING AND LOADING SPACES IN ALL PLANNED DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICTS ("PD"), AND PROVISIONS ON FLOOR AREA RATIOS, MINIMUM 
PERIMETER BUFFER AREAS AND SETBACKS AND SCREENING IN PLANNED 
DEVELOPMENT - MIXED USE DISTRICTS ("PD-M").  
  
        WHEREAS, Chapter 400 (Zoning Code) of the University City Municipal Code divides the City 
of University City, Missouri (City) into several zoning districts and establishes standards therein to 
which land, buildings, structures and their uses must conform; and 
  
        WHEREAS, in a meeting held on December 6, 2023, the City Plan Commission examined Zoning 
Code text amendments to Sections 400.760.D, 400.780.E, 400.1190.B and 400.2130 that added 
provisions on minimum off-street parking and loading spaces in all Planned Development Districts 
("PD"), and provisions on floor area ratios, minimum perimeter buffer areas and setbacks and screening 
in Planned Development - Mixed Use Districts ("PD -M"), and recommended to the City Council that 
the text amendments to Sections 400.760.D, 400.780.E, 400.1190.B be approved and the text amendment 
to Section 400.2130 not be approved; and  
  
        WHEREAS, due notice of a public hearing to be held by the City Council in the City Council 
Chambers at City Hall at 6:30 p.m. on January 8, 2024, was duly published on December 22, 2023 in 
the St. Louis Countian, a newspaper of general circulation within the City; and 
  
        WHEREAS, the public hearing was held at the time and place specified in said notice, and all 
suggestions or objections concerning the text amendments to the Zoning Code of the City were duly 
heard and considered by the City Council. 
  
        NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY 
CITY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
        Section 1.    Zoning Code Sections 400.760.D, 400.780.E and 400.1190.B of the University City 
Municipal Code, relating or applicable to planned developments, are hereby amended by adding 
provisions therein, so that said Sections, as so amended, shall read as follows: 
 
Section 400.760 Permitted Uses: 
  
D.    Planned Development — Mixed Use (PD-M). 

1. Permitted land uses and developments shall be established in the conditions of the ordinance 
adopted by the City Council governing the particular planned development — mixed use district. 
Specific uses shall include those uses designated as permitted, accessory, or conditional uses in 
any of the residential districts, and/or in the "LC", "GC" and "CC" commercial districts. 

  

N - 1 - 8



Page 2 of 3 
 

2. In addition to those uses included in Subsection (D)(1) of this Section, the following uses may 
be designated as permitted uses and established as such in the ordinance governing the particular 
planned development — mixed use district: 

a.  Attached single-family dwellings; 
b.  Patio dwellings; 
c.  Zero lot line residential developments;                                                                                   
d. Dwellings, elevator-type, with a F.A.R. greater than three (3).  

  
3. It is anticipated that the above uses will be combined in order to qualify as "PD-M" district. 

  
 
Section 400.780 Density and Dimensional Regulations and Performance Standards: 

E. Planned Development — Mixed Use (PD-M). "PD-M" developments shall incorporate the 
regulations set forth in both Subsections dealing specifically with "PD-R" and "PD-C" 
developments, except that the minimum perimeter buffer area may be reduced or not required if 
the "PD-M" development is on Delmar Boulevard between Kingsland Avenue and the eastern 
municipal limits, the broadly described boundaries of the University City Loop special business 
district established in Section 120.900. If an unresolved conflict between those regulations occurs 
(such as between common open space versus site coverage), the applicant shall set forth the 
reasons for such discrepancy and the proposed resolution. Any discrepancies between the two 
(2) sets of regulations and the resolution thereof shall be set forth in the map amendment 
ordinance and/or the resolution approving the development. The resolution thereof shall be 
pursuant to staff recommendation or as set forth by the Plan Commission in the map amendment 
ordinance. 

  
 
Section 400.1190 Screening Between Non-Residential and Residential Zoning Districts:  
  

B. In situations where a residential subdivision (more than three (3) lots) or other multiple dwelling 
unit development is constructed on a site that is abutting or adjacent to commercial or an "IC" 
zoned lot, the developer of the residential subdivision or development shall provide the following 
increase in setbacks and screening: 

1. The minimum setback for the principal residential buildings shall be increased by ten (10) 
feet along the common property line separating the residential and commercial or "IC" 
Zoning District. A permanent buffer strip of a minimum of ten (10) feet shall be 
established adjacent to and parallel to said common property line(s). This strip shall be 
indicated on the approved subdivision plat and/or development plan and annotated with 
the following statement: "This strip is reserved for landscape screening. The placement 
of buildings or other structures hereon is prohibited."  

2. Within this buffer strip, there shall be a landscaped area planted with one (1) evergreen 
tree for every twenty (20) lineal feet of common property line. In addition, combinations 
of canopy trees, ornamental trees and shrubs shall be provided as approved by the Zoning 
Administrator, provided that such landscaping will effectively screen the non-residential 
uses from the view of the abutting residential zoned properties. 

3. In addition, there shall be placed at the property line a neat, clean and maintained sight-
proof fence or wall having a minimum height of six (6) feet, but not more than eight (8) 
feet. 

N - 1 - 9

https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fecode360.com%2fprint%2f28293314%2328293314&c=E,1,LMVUsXD7P4cLoMzCLklQe45wMKBQqZ0dfAV8x2QTaHszO2vtINUwggyEogRvOPMOtSae15oQVfjrnAmdM00P9G0FpdwBCpAfMsoSJc397dJD7-Lftl3htq1S&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fecode360.com%2fprint%2f28293316%2328293316&c=E,1,jwuiMQaYcR8ExYmvJO3_m31Izl-8lo3aHI7fP4QJymjRq0MpmV25gYLTCwcSva-ZhEWqYXI4oLjXSeHKhUZBb7MXuJm3t4ZcgGLbhS5G&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fecode360.com%2fprint%2f28293317%2328293317&c=E,1,dfEnKiwfjvJPDCYJsgHft_asaDJ4PE8SGAfopV-vZaUrjRikY4So_xhyZpjnPV2xJ0Op7FQ6ZIgKsH2yaAnW1KIEvYS3afdfZnaX6Cujtv2H&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fecode360.com%2fprint%2f28293318%2328293318&c=E,1,00j_VXktxfGaU0MDP_B6trYwDjPKkyTF2msQjfH4ctk0rVeGM6kUbCuHI8C3uJSoEDJoIqY5SlgQ9NgiZLmYbEyRFYbgqCp6IDJmDyAasi1_RUW9LoLe&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fecode360.com%2fprint%2f28293786%2328293786&c=E,1,pqVUQrIlW-X7j_ygNQFapTI1eT7sifrNGbwTd5KFPXk6MfQN3rZbCuza7NEFofBrIqJp5kDJ7tKFO-Elry0txT2kD_VAWfyYFBmQ-TG6gWhA6UNHgZtYRVSk&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fecode360.com%2fprint%2f28293786%2328293786&c=E,1,pqVUQrIlW-X7j_ygNQFapTI1eT7sifrNGbwTd5KFPXk6MfQN3rZbCuza7NEFofBrIqJp5kDJ7tKFO-Elry0txT2kD_VAWfyYFBmQ-TG6gWhA6UNHgZtYRVSk&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fecode360.com%2fprint%2f28293786%2328293786&c=E,1,pqVUQrIlW-X7j_ygNQFapTI1eT7sifrNGbwTd5KFPXk6MfQN3rZbCuza7NEFofBrIqJp5kDJ7tKFO-Elry0txT2kD_VAWfyYFBmQ-TG6gWhA6UNHgZtYRVSk&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fecode360.com%2fprint%2f28293786%2328293786&c=E,1,pqVUQrIlW-X7j_ygNQFapTI1eT7sifrNGbwTd5KFPXk6MfQN3rZbCuza7NEFofBrIqJp5kDJ7tKFO-Elry0txT2kD_VAWfyYFBmQ-TG6gWhA6UNHgZtYRVSk&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fecode360.com%2fprint%2f28293786%2328293786&c=E,1,pqVUQrIlW-X7j_ygNQFapTI1eT7sifrNGbwTd5KFPXk6MfQN3rZbCuza7NEFofBrIqJp5kDJ7tKFO-Elry0txT2kD_VAWfyYFBmQ-TG6gWhA6UNHgZtYRVSk&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fecode360.com%2fprint%2f28293786%2328293786&c=E,1,pqVUQrIlW-X7j_ygNQFapTI1eT7sifrNGbwTd5KFPXk6MfQN3rZbCuza7NEFofBrIqJp5kDJ7tKFO-Elry0txT2kD_VAWfyYFBmQ-TG6gWhA6UNHgZtYRVSk&typo=1
https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fecode360.com%2fprint%2f28293786%2328293786&c=E,1,pqVUQrIlW-X7j_ygNQFapTI1eT7sifrNGbwTd5KFPXk6MfQN3rZbCuza7NEFofBrIqJp5kDJ7tKFO-Elry0txT2kD_VAWfyYFBmQ-TG6gWhA6UNHgZtYRVSk&typo=1


Page 3 of 3 

The setbacks and screening in this Subsection may be reduced or not required under the planned 
development procedure in Article IV, Division 11 of this Chapter provided the development is on Delmar 
Boulevard between Kingsland Avenue and the eastern municipal limits, the broadly described 
boundaries of the University City Loop special business district established in Section 120.900.  

Section 2.    Zoning Code Section 400.2130 of the University City Municipal Code, relating or 
applicable to planned developments, is hereby amended by adding Subsection G therein, which shall 
read as follows:  

G. Planned Developments. Exceptions in this Section authorized under the conditional use
procedure may be authorized for planned developments under the planned development
procedure in Article IV, Division 11 of this Chapter, and the same exception standards and
maximum reductions in parking and loading spaces shall apply under either procedure and may
be adjusted by the City Council to the same extent allowed under Section 400.2700.D.2 for
conditional uses.

Section 3.    This ordinance shall not be construed so as to relieve any person, firm or corporation 
from any penalty incurred by the violation of Sections 400.760.D, 400.780.E, 400.1190.B or 400.2130 
of the University City Municipal Code, nor bar the prosecution of any such violation. 

        Section 4.    Any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance shall, 
upon conviction thereof, be subject to the penalties provided in Section 400.2570 of the University City 
Municipal Code. 

        Section 5.    This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as provided 
by law. 

PASSED and ADOPTED this 8th day of January, 2024.  

____________________________ 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 

_______________________ 
            City Clerk 

CERTIFIED TO BE CORRECT AS TO FORM: 

_____________________________________ 
             City Attorney 

N - 1 - 10



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

NB20231220-02

REZ 23-02– Application for a Zoning Map Amendment and approval of a Preliminary 
Development Plan for Subtext Acquisitions, LLC at 6630, 6640, 6650, 6654 Delmar Boulevard.

John L. Wagner                                                  Planning and Development               

New Bus - Bill 9533 yes

City Manager recommends approval.  Subtext developers submitted a letter indicating their 
intention to meet our parking standards.  The letter was received after the Planning 
Commission considered the amendments.

N/A

N/A

At the Plan Commission meeting on December 6, 2023, the Plan Commission did not take any action on REZ 23-02, affirming 
the October 25, 2023, meeting decision. The Commission also did not take action on the Preliminary Development Plan at the 
December 6, 2023 meeting, again affirming its October 25, 2023 meeting decision regarding the Preliminary Development 
Plan. 
 
Since the Plan Commission meeting on December 6, 2023, the Applicant has agreed to comply with the City's parking 
regulations and have proposed a new Section 400.2130G. See attached letter from Subtext to the City Manager dated 
December 15, 2023.

Attached are the Plan Commission Transmittal Letter, Staff Report from the December 6, 2023 
Plan Commission meeting - amended to include for the City Council the Plan Commission's 
recommendation, Preliminary Development Plan, and a Draft Ordinance and  the letter from 
Subtext to the City Manager dated December 15, 2023.

Economic Development, Encourage High-quality Growth, Improved Infrastructure, 

City Manager, Gregrory Rose December 20, 2023

N - 2 - 1



  

 
 

 
 
December 6, 2023 
 
 
Ms. LaRette Reese 
City Clerk 
City of University City 
6801 Delmar Boulevard 
University City, MO 63130 
 
 
RE: Zoning Map Amendment – Subtext Acquisitions, LLC (REZ 23-02) 

 

Dear Ms. Reese, 
 
At a regularly scheduled meeting on October 25, 2023 at 975 Pennsylvania Avenue 
(Community Center) and on December 6, 2023, at 6:30 p.m. in the 5th Floor Council 
Chambers at City Hall (6801 Delmar Boulevard), the Plan Commission considered the 
application of Subtext Acquisitions, LLC for a Zoning Map Amendment for 6630, 6640, 
6650, 6654 Delmar Boulevard (a.k.a. The Commerce Bank Site), and to further consider 
approval of a Preliminary Development Plan.  
   
By a vote of 6 to 0, the Plan Commission did not take any action on REZ 23-02 at the 
December 6, 2023 meeting, affirming the October 25, 2023, meeting decision. The 
Commission also did not take action on the Preliminary Development Plan at the 
December 6, 2023, meeting, again affirming its October 25, 2023 meeting decision 
regarding the Preliminary Development Plan. 
 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Margaret Holly, Chairperson 
University City Plan Commission 
 

Plan Commission 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168   
 

N - 2 - 2



 
 

Department of Planning and Development 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 505-8500, Fax: (314) 862-3168 

STAFF REPORT (UPDATED FOR DECEMBER 6, 2023) 
*Updates to this staff report are indicated in bold, blue text* 

City Council 
 

Meeting Date December 20, 2023 (Presented October 25, 2023 and December 6, 2023) 

File Number REZ-23-02 

Council District 1 

Location 6630, 6640, 6650, 6654 Delmar Boulevard 

Applicant Subtext Acquisitions, LLC 

Property Owner 6630, 6650 Delmar Blvd: Commerce Bank 
6640, 6654 Delmar Blvd: Washington University in St. Louis 

Request Map Amendment from Core Commercial (CC) to Planned Development – 
Mixed-Use (PD-M) and to further consider approval of a Preliminary 
Development Plan 

 

 
Comprehensive Plan Conformance:  
[ X ] Yes  [  ] No      [  ] No reference 
 
Staff Recommendation:    
[  ] Approval [ X ] Approval with Conditions [  ] Denial 
 
Attachments: 

A. Application 
B. Property Owner Authorizations   
C. Narrative 
D. Site Plans 
E. Geotechnical Report 
F. Architectural Plans & Renderings 
G. Landscape Plans 
H. Traffic Impact Study 
I. Parking Sufficiency Memo 
J. Exhibit A – Parking Analysis 

 
 
Applicant Request 
The applicant, Subtext, LLC, is requesting a Map Amendment rezoning from Core Commercial (CC) to 
Planned Development Mixed-Use (PD-M) and further approval of a Preliminary Development Plan for a 
mixed-use development at 6630-6654 Delmar Boulevard. The development would include 329 dwelling 
units and approximately 8,000 square feet of retail/restaurant space.  
 
 
 

N - 2 - 3



 

REZ-23-02 Commerce Bank Site/Subtext (6630-6654 Delmar) 
Page 2 of 7 

Existing Property 
The subject property consists of four parcels located at 6630, 6640, 6650, and 6654 Delmar Boulevard. 
There are two existing commercial buildings on the property, one of which is a one-story former 
Commerce Bank retail location with additional retail and restaurant tenant space. The Commerce Bank 
building was originally built in 1953, according to St. Louis County Assessor data. The other existing 
building is the former Craft Alliance building, built in 1930. Commerce Bank owns a majority of the 
property (6630 and 6650 Delmar), and Washington University owns the Craft Alliance site (6640 Delmar) 
and the small parcel adjacent to it (6654 Delmar). Both buildings on the property are vacant, and 
remaining areas of the parcels are occupied by parking lots. There is on-street parking available on three 
sides of the property (Delmar, Leland, and Loop South). 
 
The entire property is zoned Core Commercial (CC) and consists of 1.98 acres. Neither of the existing 
buildings are designated historic sites nor is any part of the property in a historic district. However, the 
site is within 300 feet of three historic districts: University City Civic Complex Historic District (Local), 
Delmar Loop – Parkview Gardens Historic District (National), and Parkview Historic District (Local). When 
properties are within 300 feet of a historic district, the code requires building permits to be forwarded to 
the Historic Preservation Commission for interpretation, advice and recommendations. No part of the 
property is within a floodplain. 
 

 
 
 

Existing Zoning & Land Use Surrounding Zoning & Land Use 

Existing Zoning:  Core Commercial (CC) North: Core Commercial (CC); Elevator 
apartments, restaurant, retail 

Existing Land Use: Vacant (formerly occupied by 
bank, retail, and restaurant) 

East: Core Commercial (CC); Retail, 
restaurant, and office 

Proposed Zoning: Planned Development – Mixed-
Use (PD-M) 

South: High Density Residential (HR); 
Elevator apartments, garden 
apartments, attached single-
family, single-family 

N - 2 - 4



 

REZ-23-02 Commerce Bank Site/Subtext (6630-6654 Delmar) 
Page 3 of 7 

Proposed Land Use: Mixed-use: residential (elevator 
apartments, townhomes), retail, 
restaurant 

West: Core Commercial (CC); Retail, 
restaurant 

 
Surrounding Zoning 

 
Analysis 
Land Use and Zoning 
The proposed development includes 329 dwelling units, 3,644 square feet of restaurant space, and 4,466 
square feet of retail space. Of the 329 dwelling units, 319 are elevator-type dwellings on the floors above 
ground level: 54 studios, 49 one-bedroom units, 140 two-bedroom units, and 76 three-bedroom units. 
The remaining ten dwelling units are two-story town-house dwellings with two bedrooms and two 
bathrooms each, with direct access from the ground level and internal access from inside the building.  
 
The above uses are considered permitted uses in the Planned Development – Mixed-Use District per 
§400.760(D). However, the zoning code does not currently address elevator-type dwellings that exceed a 
floor area ratio (FAR) of 3.0. As currently proposed, the overall FAR of the mixed-use building is 3.69. 
Therefore, a Text Amendment would be required to permit an elevator-type dwelling with an FAR greater 
than 3.0 (see concurrently proposed TXT-23-04). 
 
Dimensional Regulations 
PD-M developments are subject to the dimensional regulations set forth for Planned Development – 
Residential (PD-R) and Planned Development – Commercial (PD-C), and if there is an unresolved conflict 
between the PD-R and PD-C regulations, those discrepancies are required to be explained and a resolution 
proposed. In addition, there are relevant dimensional regulations in Article V, Division 4 (Supplementary 
Residential Development Standards) and Article V, Division 6 (Landscaping and Screening Requirements). 
The proposed PD-M development meets the dimensional regulations in the code sections listed above, 
with two exceptions that are described below. 

Subject Property 

Municipal 
Lot 4 

U City Library 

Post 
Office Vintage 

Vinyl 

N - 2 - 5



 

REZ-23-02 Commerce Bank Site/Subtext (6630-6654 Delmar) 
Page 4 of 7 

 
1. Conflict with Perimeter Buffer Requirements per §400.780(C)(6)(b) and §400.780(D)(4) 

PD-R and PD-C developments require perimeter buffers in certain situations. PD-R 
developments require a 30-foot-wide buffer when abutting a commercial or industrial use or 
zoning district. Abutting is defined in Article II Definitions as “having a common border with, 
or being separated from such a common border by a right-of-way or easement for a street, 
alley, pedestrian way, utilities or storm drainage.” By this definition, the proposed PD-M 
development abuts commercial uses and zoning districts at its west, north, and east property 
lines. Therefore, the 30-foot-wide buffer would be required along those three sides of the 
property. Additionally, PD-C developments require a 50-foot-wide buffer when abutting a 
residential zoning district. Therefore, the proposed PD-M development would require a 50-
wide buffer along its south property line where it abuts a High Density Residential (HR) zoning 
district, with the Loop South right-of-way in between. These buffers require dense 
landscaping and screening between the abutting uses/zoning districts.  

With the above requirements, the development would require buffers on all four sides of the 
property, decreasing the buildable area of the property from 86,297 square feet of total lot 
area to 39,227 square feet of buildable lot area (54.5% reduction). It is staff’s opinion that 
these buffers are not appropriate for the proposed development for three reasons. First, the 
required buffers are not consistent with the existing character of the Delmar Loop and 
abutting properties. Second, requiring a 30-foot-wide buffer at the north and east property 
lines (fronting Delmar and Leland) with landscaping and permanent screening from the 
“abutting” commercial uses across Delmar and Leland, would block visibility into the 
proposed ground floor retail and restaurant storefronts. This screening would have adverse 
impacts on maintaining and promoting an active streetscape that supports retail and 
restaurant businesses. Finally, the buffers would significantly limit buildable area and could 
potentially threaten the economic feasibility of redeveloping the subject property. 

Therefore, a Text Amendment is recommended to address these perimeter buffer conflicts 
(see concurrently proposed TXT-23-04). 

2. Conflict with Landscaping & Screening Requirements per §400.1190(B)(1) 
Article V, Division 6 (Landscaping and Screening Requirements) of the zoning code requires 
an increase in setbacks (10-foot increase) and screening (dense evergreen tree plantings and 
a minimum 6-foot-tall privacy fence) when multi-family developments abut commercial 
zoning districts. It is staff’s opinion that these requirements are not appropriate for the 
proposed development for similar reasons described above for the perimeter buffer conflict. 

Therefore, a Text Amendment is recommended to address these increased landscaping and 
screening conflicts (see concurrently proposed TXT-23-04). 

 
Finally, Article V, Division 4 (Supplementary Residential Development Standards) sets forth additional 
dimensional regulations for elevator-type dwellings and town-house dwellings. A few of the standards set 
forth in this Division of the zoning code are not met by the proposed development. However, deviation 
from the strict application of these supplementary residential standards is permitted under the provisions 
of a planned development per §400.1110. The purpose of planned development districts is to: 

“provide a means of achieving greater flexibility in development of land in a manner not always 
possible in conventional zoning districts; to encourage a more imaginative and innovative design 
of projects; to promote a more desirable community environment; and to retain maximum control 
over both the design and future operation of the development.” (§400.720(A)) 

N - 2 - 6



 

REZ-23-02 Commerce Bank Site/Subtext (6630-6654 Delmar) 
Page 5 of 7 

Off-Street Parking Requirements 
Without any of the reductions allowed in the zoning code, the proposed development requires a total of 
699 parking spaces, 607 of which are required for the residential uses, 20 for visitors of the building’s 
residents, 49 for the restaurant use, and 23 for the retail use. The applicant is requesting a reduction in 
the required number of parking spaces to a total of 379 parking spaces (1 per dwelling unit plus 50 spaces 
for the retail, restaurant, and visitor parking combined).  
 
As currently written in the zoning code, reductions in parking (or exceptions to the minimum number of 
required parking spaces) can be granted through a few provisions. These include when a development is 
within 500 feet of a transit stop/station (10% reduction); shared parking arrangements (when different 
uses have different peak parking periods); when public parking is allocated for the development (with a 
fee per parking space allocated); and/or through Conditional Use Permit (up to 20% reduction).  
 
In late 2019, the Plan Commission recommended, and City Council approved, the removal of a provision 
exempting redevelopments (including the construction of new buildings) in the Core Commercial (CC) 
zoning district from meeting the minimum number of required parking spaces. The original intent of this 
provision was to encourage redevelopment in the Delmar Loop and promote a walkable environment. 
When the provision was removed, the intent was to “effectively address the negative impacts of excessive 
on-street parking demands” (staff memo to City Council). Since 2019, no new construction 
redevelopments have been approved in the Delmar Loop. This trend may be a sign that the City’s parking 
standards can be a deterrent in the Delmar Loop, where space is tight and the proximity of restaurants, 
shops, and entertainment venues, and overall walkable environment are one of its main attractions. 
 
The existing provisions for parking reduction are not sufficient to approve the proposed number of parking 
spaces (329 379). Therefore, a Text Amendment would be necessary to permit the proposed reduction in 
parking spaces (see proposed TXT-23-04). TXT-23-04 would create a provision that allows modification of 
the off-street parking requirements through the Planned Development procedure if the modification 
meets the conditional use permit review criteria set forth in §400.2710. The applicant has included with 
their application a parking sufficiency memo from CBB Transportation Engineers stating that the proposed 
number of parking spaces meets the average parking demand. This opinion is based on parking demand 
data from the Institute of Traffic Engineers (ITE) Parking General Manual for the proposed uses. 
 
Since the October 25, 2023 meeting, the City hired two transportation engineering firms to review the 
results of the Parking Sufficiency Memo (attached to this staff report) which was prepared by the 
applicant’s consultant. Both firms confirmed that the methodology in the Parking Sufficiency Memo is 
sound and advised that 425 parking spaces is sufficient for the proposed development. 
 
In addition, the viability of the Preliminary Development Plan recommended on 10/25/23 relative to 
the recommended provisions in TXT-23-04 related to parking requirements has become problematic. 
The proposed development must comply with the existing parking requirements and existing 
provisions for parking reductions outlined in Section 400.2130. TXT-23-04 has been amended (see 
separate staff report) to reflect this, and additional analysis has been provided on the authorized 
parking reductions (see Exhibit A, attached to this staff report).   
 
It is staff’s opinion that the CUP review criteria (400.2710) and the General Standards for approval of a 
development plan (400.780(A)) are satisfied for the requested modification to the parking requirements, 
and that the reduction in the required parking would be appropriate, given the following: 

• CBB Transportation Engineer’s parking sufficiency memo (attached) 
• Good access to public transportation:  

N - 2 - 7



 

REZ-23-02 Commerce Bank Site/Subtext (6630-6654 Delmar) 
Page 6 of 7 

o 14-minute walk to University City-Big Bend MetroLink Station (Blue Line) 
o 15-minute walk to Delmar Loop MetroLink station (Red Line) 
o 0-minute walk to bus stop for MetroBus Route 97 (connections to Downtown St. Louis 

and Downtown Clayton) 
o 4-minute walk to bus stop for MetroBus Route 5 (connections to Washington University 

facilities) 
• Highly walkable location (Walk Score of 90 – “Walker’s Paradise”) 
• Bicycle friendly location (Bike Score of 70 – “Very Bikeable”) 
• Regional and national trends towards more flexible parking requirements, especially in denser, 

mixed-use environments. For example, neighborhoods such as Forest Park Southeast in St. Louis 
limit how much off-street parking a developer can build to one space per dwelling unit (regardless 
of the number of bedrooms), with the intent of encouraging density and foot traffic to support 
businesses, amenities, and services in the neighborhood. 

 
Bicycle Parking  
The proposed development appears to provide sufficient off-street bicycle parking spaces per §400.2145. 
A dedicated bicycle storage room is provided on the ground floor with direct access from the sidewalk 
along Leland Avenue. 
 
Loading 
Off-street loading spaces have been provided per the requirements set forth in §400.2150. 
 
Site Coverage 
Planned Development – Commercial (PD-C) developments are limited to a site coverage of 70%, but if the 
proposed development can demonstrate compliance with four or more of the performance criteria set 
forth in §400.780(D)(2), site coverage can be increased to 90% maximum. The proposed development has 
86.6% site coverage. Site coverage is defined in the zoning code as “the area of the site which is covered 
by buildings, driveways, parking lots, loading areas, but excluding open spaces, plazas, pedestrian 
circulation, and buffer areas.” The applicant has demonstrated compliance with the following criteria: 

• Install storm drainage detention facilities underground 
• Providing for screened loading and unloading areas 
• Providing for mixed-use developments that include community facilities that further the goals, 

objectives and policies of the Comprehensive Plan 
• Demonstration of a development using innovative architectural, site planning and land use design 

and of such quality as to set an excellent example for subsequent development or redevelopment 
projects 

  
2005 Comprehensive Plan 
The future land use map of the Comprehensive Plan identifies the subject property as “Mixed-Use/Transit 
Oriented Development”. The intended land uses for this category include a combination of commercial, 
professional and/or residential uses should occur or be encouraged. Land use activities in “Mixed-
Use/Transit Oriented Development” should be neighborhood serving or community serving; mixed uses 
may be a single building, a group of buildings or a multiple block district. The proposed use of the subject 
property is consistent with the purpose and intent of this land use category.  
 
2023 Comprehensive Plan 
The 2023 Comprehensive Plan was unanimously adopted by the Plan Commission by resolution on 
September 27, 2023. Once approved by the City Council, the 2023 Comprehensive Plan will go into full 
effect and will replace the 2005 Comprehensive Plan. The proposed development furthers the 2023 plan’s 

N - 2 - 8



 

REZ-23-02 Commerce Bank Site/Subtext (6630-6654 Delmar) 
Page 7 of 7 

emphasis on encouraging denser, mixed-use development, particularly in Activity Centers, and reducing 
parking requirements where appropriate. The future character and land use map of the 2023 plan 
identifies the subject property as an “Activity Center” and is within the “Loop Activity Center Overlay”. 
The uses and character of the proposed development are consistent with both place types. 
 
Previously Held Public Meetings for the Proposed Development 
Below is a summary of previously held public meetings and events to obtain feedback on the proposed 
development from City Boards & Commissions and neighboring residents. 

• July 26, 2023 – Plan Commission working session 
• August 11, 2023 – Community open-house event 
• September 19, 2023 – Community open-house event  
• September 27, 2023 – Plan Commission working session  
• October 10, 2023 – Loop Special Business District Board meeting 
• October 11, 2023 – Traffic Commission meeting 

 

Plan Commission Meeting 

At the Plan Commission meeting on December 6, 2023, the Plan Commission did not take any action on 
REZ 23-02, affirming the October 25, 2023, meeting decision. The Commission also did not take action 
on the Preliminary Development Plan at the December 6, 2023 meeting, again affirming its October 25, 
2023 meeting decision regarding the Preliminary Development Plan. 
 
 
Staff Recommendation 
Staff recommends approval of the Map Amendment and Preliminary Development Plan as presented in 
the attached documents, with the following conditions: 
 

1. The recommendation is contingent upon City Council approval of TXT-23-04. 
2. The development shall be subject to the standards set forth in 400.590(C) through 400.590(F). 
3. The recommendation of the Preliminary Development Plan is contingent upon the City 

verification of the parking analysis prior to the Preliminary Development Plan being presented 
to City Council. 

4. A reduction in the number of parking spaces is approved, from 699 to 461 required spaces, per 
analysis in Exhibit A, attached to this staff report, with the following conditions: 

a. All 461 parking spaces shall be made available to all uses within the development. In 
the event some spaces are restricted for a particular use, the development must comply 
with the shared parking table requirements to reflect that some of the spaces will not 
be shared among all uses. 

b. The applicant shall satisfy the 461 required parking spaces by either providing all the 
required spaces on-site, or by paying to the City a fee for pro rata share of the cost of 
constructing and maintaining Municipal Lot No. 4. 

c. In the event the final development plan has changes to the Preliminary Development 
Plan that affect the minimum number required by Chapter 400, Article VII, the minimum 
number shall increase or decrease accordingly.  

N - 2 - 9



N - 2 - 10



TOTAL TRACT

LE
LA

N
D

 (5
5'

w
) A

VE
.

S. LOOP STREET

DELMAR (80'w)  BLVD.

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y:

D
EL

M
AR

 B
O

U
LE

VA
R

D
 &

 L
EL

AN
D

 A
VE

N
U

E
U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 C

IT
Y,

 M
O

 6
31

30

LO
CA

L 
UN

IV
ER

SI
TY

 C
IT

Y
PR

EL
IM

IN
AR

Y 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

PL
AN

/P
LA

T 
FO

R
:

D
R

AW
IN

G
 F

IL
E:

 O
:\D

R
AW

66
00

\2
19

66
81

\6
68

1.
3\

C
iv

il\
Pr

el
im

in
ar

y\
66

81
.3

_b
as

e.
dw

g 
 L

AY
O

U
T:

 C
02

.0
-E

XI
ST

IN
G

 A
LT

A 
SU

R
VE

Y 
 P

LO
TT

ED
:  

O
ct

 1
1,

  2
02

3 
- 1

1:
23

am
  P

LO
TT

ED
 B

Y:
 jo

sh
.b

ar
cu

s

25
7 

Ch
es

te
rf

ie
ld

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pa

rk
w

ay
St

. L
ou

is
, M

O 
 6

30
05

 P
H.

 (6
36

)
53

0-
91

00
 F

AX
 (6

36
) 5

30
-9

13
0

e-
m

ai
l: 

ge
ne

ra
l@

st
oc

ka
ss

oc
.c

om
W

eb
: w

w
w

.s
to

ck
as

so
c.

co
m

EXISTING ALTA
SURVEY

C2.0
N - 2 - 11



TOTAL TRACT

PARKING
521'

BIKE &
STORAGE

RETAIL
TRASH/
BOH

TRASH

1,216 SF
RETAIL

3,249 SF
RETAIL

3,646SF
RESTAURANT

5,230 SF
RESIDENTIAL

LOADING

527 SF
LOBBY

TRASH

BOH

PET SPAFE
N

CE
D 

DO
G 

RU
N

(IR
RI

GA
TE

D 
TU

RF
)

ENTRY
PORTAL/

VESTIBULE

3,071 SF
LOBBY

2,434 SF
PATIO

(140 BIKES)

LE
LA

N
D

 (5
5'

w
) A

VE
.

S. LOOP STREET

DELMAR (80'w)  BLVD.

CURB INLET.
(TRAPPED)
T 520.36
FL 514.36

MANHOLE
T 517.25
FL 499.71

MANHOLE
T 517.38
FL(w) 502.46
FL(e) 497.57

MANHOLE
T 514.12
FL 498.92

PROPOSED
SEWER

EASEMENT

N

S

EW

CURB INLET.
(TRAPPED)
T 518.08
FL(s)  511.19
FL(w) 509.37

MANHOLE
T 517.50
FL(w) 508.74
FL(s) 499.68

MANHOLE
T 521.95

FL 512.60
3

MANHOLE
T 520.60
FL 508.17

2

1

4

5

6

7
8

MANHOLE
T 518.15
FL 512.19

9

EX1

EX2

SAND/OIL
SEPARATOR

FOR INTERNAL
GARAGE DRAINS

POOL DRAIN
LATERALSAMPLING

MANHOLE

RESIDENTIAL
SANITARY
LATERAL

COMMERCIAL
SANITARY
LATERAL

COMMERCIAL
SANITARY
LATERAL

RESIDENTIAL
SANITARY

LATERAL

TAP PER MAWC
STANDARDS.

8" FULL FLOW
FIRE METER

PROPOSED ELECTRIC
FEED. COORDINATE WITH

AMEREN.

PROPOSED
UNDERGROUND

DETENTION
(FLOOD PROTECTION &
CHANNEL PROTECTION)

RELOCATED PUBLIC
COMBINED SEWER

RELOCATED PUBLIC
COMBINED SEWER

RELOCATED PUBLIC
COMBINED SEWER

RELOCATED PUBLIC
COMBINED SEWER

EXISTING GRANITE
CURB TO BE
REMOVED &
REPLACED.

EXISTING CONCRETE
CURB TO BE
REMOVED &
REPLACED.

EXISTING CONCRETE
CURB TO BE
REMOVED &
REPLACED.

ACCESSIBLE RAMPS
@ DRIVEWAYS
(TYPICAL)

BIKE RACK
(TYP)

SIDEWALK PLANTING
AREA. SEE PLANTING

PLAN

CONCRETE PAVERS
AT RETAIL PATIO

EXISTING POST TOP
STREET LIGHTS TO
BE REINSTALLED.

ST. LOUIS WALK OF
FAME STAR PLACARD

(TYP)

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y:

D
EL

M
AR

 B
O

U
LE

VA
R

D
 &

 L
EL

AN
D

 A
VE

N
U

E
U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 C

IT
Y,

 M
O

 6
31

30

LO
CA

L 
UN

IV
ER

SI
TY

 C
IT

Y
PR

EL
IM

IN
AR

Y 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

PL
AN

/P
LA

T 
FO

R
:

D
R

AW
IN

G
 F

IL
E:

 O
:\D

R
AW

66
00

\2
19

66
81

\6
68

1.
3\

C
iv

il\
Pr

el
im

in
ar

y\
66

81
.3

_b
as

e.
dw

g 
 L

AY
O

U
T:

 C
03

.0
-P

R
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y-

FI
N

AL
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

PL
AN

  P
LO

TT
ED

:  
O

ct
 1

1,
  2

02
3 

- 1
1:

23
am

  P
LO

TT
ED

 B
Y:

 jo
sh

.b
ar

cu
s

25
7 

Ch
es

te
rf

ie
ld

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pa

rk
w

ay
St

. L
ou

is
, M

O 
 6

30
05

 P
H.

 (6
36

)
53

0-
91

00
 F

AX
 (6

36
) 5

30
-9

13
0

e-
m

ai
l: 

ge
ne

ra
l@

st
oc

ka
ss

oc
.c

om
W

eb
: w

w
w

.s
to

ck
as

so
c.

co
m

PRELIMINARY
DEVELOPMENT PLAN

C3.0
N - 2 - 12



N-S SITE SECTION
SCALE: 1"=20'(V)(H)

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

E-W SITE SECTION
SCALE: 1"=20'(V)(H)

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

PR
O

PE
R

TY
 L

IN
E

LELAND AVE. (55' w)

R
/W

 L
IN

E

R
/W

 L
IN

E

DELMAR BLVD.  (80' w)
PARAPET ELEV. 602.50PARAPET ELEV. 602.50 ROOF ELEV. 599.00

CANITILEVER ELEV. 541.00

S. LOOP STREET

PARAPET ELEV. 602.50

PARAPET ELEV. 602.50 PARAPET ELEV. 602.50 PARAPET ELEV. 602.50 PARAPET ELEV. 602.50 PARAPET ELEV. 602.50

COURTYARD ELEV. 544.00 ROOF ELEV. 544.00

ELEVATOR
OVERRUN ELEV. 605.00

ROOF ELEV. 599.00 ROOF ELEV. 599.00 ROOF ELEV. 599.00

EXISTING
GRADE

EXISTING
GRADE

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y:

D
EL

M
AR

 B
O

U
LE

VA
R

D
 &

 L
EL

AN
D

 A
VE

N
U

E
U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 C

IT
Y,

 M
O

 6
31

30

LO
CA

L 
UN

IV
ER

SI
TY

 C
IT

Y
PR

EL
IM

IN
AR

Y 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

PL
AN

/P
LA

T 
FO

R
:

D
R

AW
IN

G
 F

IL
E:

 O
:\D

R
AW

66
00

\2
19

66
81

\6
68

1.
3\

C
iv

il\
Pr

el
im

in
ar

y\
66

81
.3

_b
as

e.
dw

g 
 L

AY
O

U
T:

 C
04

.0
-S

IT
E 

SE
C

TI
O

N
S 

 P
LO

TT
ED

:  
O

ct
 1

1,
  2

02
3 

- 1
1:

23
am

  P
LO

TT
ED

 B
Y:

 jo
sh

.b
ar

cu
s

25
7 

Ch
es

te
rf

ie
ld

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pa

rk
w

ay
St

. L
ou

is
, M

O 
 6

30
05

 P
H.

 (6
36

)
53

0-
91

00
 F

AX
 (6

36
) 5

30
-9

13
0

e-
m

ai
l: 

ge
ne

ra
l@

st
oc

ka
ss

oc
.c

om
W

eb
: w

w
w

.s
to

ck
as

so
c.

co
m

SITE SECTIONS

C4.0
N - 2 - 13



TOTAL TRACT

LE
LA

N
D

 (5
5'

w
) A

VE
.

S. LOOP STREET

DELMAR (80'w)  BLVD.

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y:

D
EL

M
AR

 B
O

U
LE

VA
R

D
 &

 L
EL

AN
D

 A
VE

N
U

E
U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 C

IT
Y,

 M
O

 6
31

30

LO
CA

L 
UN

IV
ER

SI
TY

 C
IT

Y
PR

EL
IM

IN
AR

Y 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

PL
AN

/P
LA

T 
FO

R
:

D
R

AW
IN

G
 F

IL
E:

 O
:\D

R
AW

66
00

\2
19

66
81

\6
68

1.
3\

C
iv

il\
Pr

el
im

in
ar

y\
66

81
.3

_b
as

e.
dw

g 
 L

AY
O

U
T:

 C
05

.0
-E

XI
ST

IN
G

 R
U

N
O

FF
 M

AP
  P

LO
TT

ED
:  

O
ct

 1
1,

  2
02

3 
- 1

1:
23

am
  P

LO
TT

ED
 B

Y:
 jo

sh
.b

ar
cu

s

25
7 

Ch
es

te
rf

ie
ld

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pa

rk
w

ay
St

. L
ou

is
, M

O 
 6

30
05

 P
H.

 (6
36

)
53

0-
91

00
 F

AX
 (6

36
) 5

30
-9

13
0

e-
m

ai
l: 

ge
ne

ra
l@

st
oc

ka
ss

oc
.c

om
W

eb
: w

w
w

.s
to

ck
as

so
c.

co
m

EXISTING RUNOFF
MAP

C5.0

PRE-DEVELOPED RUNOFF: 20-yr; 20-min STORM

PAVEMENT = 1.33 Ac x 3.70 cfs/Ac = 4.92 cfs
ROOF = 0.45 Ac x 6.00 cfs/Ac = 2.70 cfs
GRASS = 0.20 Ac x 1.78 cfs/Ac = 0.36 cfs

TOTAL EXISTING RUNOFF = 7.98 c.f.s.

N - 2 - 14



LE
LA

N
D

 (5
5'

w
) A

VE
.

S. LOOP STREET

DELMAR (80'w)  BLVD.

TAP PER MAWC
STANDARDS.

8" FULL FLOW
FIRE METER

EXISTING GRANITE
CURB TO BE
REMOVED &
REPLACED.

EXISTING CONCRETE
CURB TO BE
REMOVED &
REPLACED.

EXISTING CONCRETE
CURB TO BE
REMOVED &
REPLACED.

ACCESSIBLE RAMPS
@ DRIVEWAYS
(TYPICAL)

BIKE RACK
(TYP)

SIDEWALK PLANTING
AREA. SEE PLANTING

PLAN

CONCRETE PAVERS
AT RETAIL PATIO

EXISTING POST TOP
STREET LIGHTS TO
BE REINSTALLED.

ST. LOUIS WALK OF
FAME STAR PLACARD

(TYP)

PR
EP

AR
ED

 B
Y:

D
EL

M
AR

 B
O

U
LE

VA
R

D
 &

 L
EL

AN
D

 A
VE

N
U

E
U

N
IV

ER
SI

TY
 C

IT
Y,

 M
O

 6
31

30

LO
CA

L 
UN

IV
ER

SI
TY

 C
IT

Y
PR

EL
IM

IN
AR

Y 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

PL
AN

/P
LA

T 
FO

R
:

D
R

AW
IN

G
 F

IL
E:

 O
:\D

R
AW

66
00

\2
19

66
81

\6
68

1.
3\

C
iv

il\
Pr

el
im

in
ar

y\
66

81
.3

_b
as

e.
dw

g 
 L

AY
O

U
T:

 C
06

.0
-P

R
O

PO
SE

D
 R

U
N

O
FF

 M
AP

  P
LO

TT
ED

:  
O

ct
 1

1,
  2

02
3 

- 1
1:

23
am

  P
LO

TT
ED

 B
Y:

 jo
sh

.b
ar

cu
s

25
7 

Ch
es

te
rf

ie
ld

 B
us

in
es

s 
Pa

rk
w

ay
St

. L
ou

is
, M

O 
 6

30
05

 P
H.

 (6
36

)
53

0-
91

00
 F

AX
 (6

36
) 5

30
-9

13
0

e-
m

ai
l: 

ge
ne

ra
l@

st
oc

ka
ss

oc
.c

om
W

eb
: w

w
w

.s
to

ck
as

so
c.

co
m

PROPOSED RUNOFF
MAP

C6.0

POST-DEVELOPED RUNOFF: 20-yr; 20-min STORM

PAVEMENT = 0.47 Ac x 3.70 cfs/Ac = 1.74 cfs
ROOF= 1.42 Ac x 6.00 cfs/Ac = 8.52 cfs
GRASS = 0.09 Ac x 1.78 cfs/Ac = 0.16 cfs

TOTAL PROPOSED RUNOFF = 10.42 c.f.s.

DIFFERENTIAL RUNOFF = 10.42 cfs - 7.98 cfs = 2.44 cfs

PURSUANT TO MSD CONCEPTUAL REVIEW - 'BACK TO GRASS' EVALUATION REQUIRED

EXISTING BACK TO GRASS = 1.98 Ac x 1.78 cfs = 3.52 cfs

DIFFERENTIAL RUNOFF ' BACK TO GRASS' = 10.42 cfs - 3.52 cfs = 6.90 cfs.

STORMWATER DETENTION REQUIRED FOR 2-yr; 24-hr & 100-yr; 24-hr STORM EVENTS.

CHANNEL PROTECTION NOT REQUIRED BY MSD, BUT TO BE PROVIDED .

N - 2 - 15



1 

INTRODUCED BY:________________     DATE:__________ 
 
BILL NO.: 95 33           ORDINANCE NO.______ 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 400.070 OF THE UNIVERSITY CITY 
MUNICIPAL CODE, RELATING TO THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP, BY AMENDING SAID 
MAP SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASSIFICATION OF PROPERTY AT 6630-6654 DELMAR 
BOULEVARD FROM CORE COMMERCIAL DISTRICT ("CC") TO PLANNED 
DEVELOPMENT - MIXED USE DISTRICT ("PD-M"). 
  
        WHEREAS, Chapter 400 (Zoning Code) of the University City Municipal Code divides the City 
of University City, Missouri (City) into several zoning districts and establishes standards therein to 
which land, buildings, structures and their uses must conform; and 
  
        WHEREAS, in a meeting held on October 25, 2023, the City Plan Commission examined an 
amendment of the Official Zoning Map of the City which changes the classification of property at 
6630-6654 Delmar Boulevard from Core Commercial District ("CC") to Planned Development - 
Mixed Use District ("PD-M"), and recommended to the City Council that the amendment be approved; 
and 
  
        WHEREAS, due notice of a public hearing to be held by the City Council in the City Council 
Chambers at City Hall at 6:30 p.m. on January 8, 2024, was duly published on December 22, 2023 in 
the St. Louis Countian, a newspaper of general circulation within the City; and 
  
        WHEREAS, the public hearing was held at the time and place specified in said notice, and all 
suggestions or objections concerning the amendment of the Official Zoning Map of the City were duly 
heard and considered by the City Council. 
  
        NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
  
        Section 1.    Section 400.070 of the University City Municipal Code, relating to the Official 
Zoning Map, is hereby amended by amending the Official Zoning Map illustrating the zoning districts 
established pursuant to Section 400.070, for property at 6630-6654 Delmar Boulevard, so as to change 
the classification of said property from Core Commercial District ("CC") to Planned Development - 
Mixed Use District ("PD-M"). The following land uses and developments may be permitted in said 
PD-M District, subject to approval of a final development plan: retail stores, banks, restaurants, 
elevator-type dwellings and town-house dwellings. 
  
        Section 2.    The property at 6630 Delmar, totaling approximately 1.981 acres, is more fully 
described with a legal description, attached hereto, marked "Exhibit A" and made a part hereof. 
  
        Section 3.    By Resolution No. 2023-__, the City Council approved a preliminary development 
plan known as "Local University City," and authorized the preparation of a final development plan.  
A final development plan and plat must be approved by the City Council prior to the issuance of any 
building permits in connection with the development. A landscape plan shall be submitted for review 
and approval with the final development plan. The number of dwelling units shall not exceed 329. 
  

N - 2 - 16



2 

        Section 4.    This ordinance shall not be construed so as to relieve any person, firm or corporation 
from any penalty incurred by the violation of Section 400.070 of the University City Municipal Code, 
nor bar the prosecution of any such violation. 
  
        Section 5.    Any person, firm or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance 
shall, upon conviction thereof, be subject to the penalties provided in Section 400.2570 of the 
University City Municipal Code. 
  
        Section 6.    This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as provided 
by law. 
 
 
PASSED and ADOPTED this ________ day of ____________, 2024. 
 
 

________________________________ 
MAYOR 

ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________ 

  CITY CLERK 
 
CERTIFIED TO BE CORRECT AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________________ 

 CITY ATTORNEY 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

N - 2 - 17



3 

 
 
EXHIBIT A – LEGAL DESCRIPTION FOR REZONING 
 
A tract of land being part of lots 5 through 15 of Rosedale Heights, a subdivision according to the plat 
thereof as recorded in Plat Book 2, Page 60 of the St Louis County records, located in US Survey 378, 
Township 45 North, Range 6 East of the Fifth Principal Meridian, University City, St. Louis County, 
Missouri being more particularly described as follows: 
 
Beginning at the intersection of south right-of-way line of Delmar Boulevard, 80 feet wide, as 
established by Book 3811, Page 352 of above said records with the west right-of-way line of Leland 
Ave, 55 feet wide; thence along said west right-of-way line,  South 03 degrees 00 minutes 32 seconds 
West, 164.34 feet to its intersection with the north right-of-way line of a South Loop Street, 55 feet 
wide; thence along said right-of-way line, North 87 degrees 14 minutes 00 seconds West, 525.11 feet 
to the east line of a tract of land as conveyed to BST Delmar, LLC by instrument recorded in Book 
19826, Page 1172 of above said records; thence along said east line, North 03 degrees 00 minutes 32 
seconds East, 164.34 feet to the south right-of-way line of above said Delmar Boulevard; thence along 
said right-of-way line, South 87 degrees 14 minutes 0 seconds East, 525.11 feet to the POINT OF 
BEGINNING. 
 
Containing 86,294 square feet or 1.981 acres, more or less. 
 
 

N - 2 - 18



N - 2 - 19



 
DECEMBER 15, 2023 
 

SPECIAL MEETING REQUEST 3000 LOCUST ST. 
ST. LOUIS, MO 63103 

(314) 502-1020 

SUBTEXTLIVING.COM 

 VIA EMAIL: grose@ucitymo.org 
 
The City of University City, Missouri 
6801 Delmar Boulevard 
St. Louis, Missouri 63130 
Attn: Gregory Rose, City Manager 
 
Re: TXT-23-04; REZ-23-02; SUB-23-02 
 
Dear City Manager, 
 
Please allow this letter to express Subtext Acquisitions, LLC (the “Applicant”)’s support in 
approving the following text amendment to the City’s Zoning Code that allows for procedural 
flexibility in obtaining the necessary approvals to provide parking for planned district 
developments: 
 
New Section 400.2130.G. Planned Developments. Exceptions in this Section authorized under 
the conditional use procedure may be authorized for planned developments under the planned 
development procedure in Article IV, Division 11 of this Chapter, and the same exception 
standards and maximum reductions in parking and loading spaces shall apply under either 
procedure and may be adjusted by the City Council to the same extent allowed under Section 
400.2700.D.2 for conditional uses.  
 
The Plan Commission, on December 6, 2023, recommended a text amendment that in addition 
to procedural flexibility allows for modifications to current off-street parking requirements 
through the planned development procedure. Please note that Subtext agrees to comply with 
the parking calculations and requirements as set forth in the current Zoning Code for its 
development of 6630-6654 Delmar Boulevard (the “Site”), so the Plan Commission's 
recommendation on such modifications is not needed nor requested by the Applicant.  
 
The Applicant respectfully requests the immediate introduction of legislation adopting the 
above new Section 400.2130.G at a special meeting held before the end of the year, so that the 
City Council may consider final passage of such legislation at its meeting on January 8, 2024. 
The Applicant also respectfully requests that at the same special meeting, the City Council 
introduce legislation amending the Zoning Map for the Site (REZ 23-02) and approving a final 
plat for lot consolidation at the Site (SUB-23-02), as recommended by the Plan Commission on 
October 25, 2023, and that a resolution approving the preliminary development plan for the Site 
be introduced at the special meeting or on January 8, 2024 (REZ 23-02) and passed on January 8, 
2024, as recommended by Plan Commission on December 6, 2023.   
 

N - 2 - 20



DECEMBER 15, 2023 
 

SPECIAL MEETING REQUEST PAGE 2 
 

Thank you for your time and consideration. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
 
 
Ryan Bumb 
Development Manager 
Subtext Acquisitions, LLC 
 

c.c. John Mulligan, Esq., City Attorney 
 Rob Klahr, Esq., Counsel for Subtext 

N - 2 - 21



N - 2 - 22



CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AGENDA ITEM

NUMBER:
For City Clerk Use

PREPARED BY: DEPARTMENT / WARD

AGENDA SECTION: CAN ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?

AMOUNT: ACCOUNT No.:

FROM FUND: TO FUND:

CIP No.

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: MEETING DATE:

CITY MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION OR RECOMMENDED MOTION:

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUBJECT/TITLE: 

LIST CITY COUNCIL GOALS (S):

EXPLANATION:

RELATED ITEMS / ATTACHMENTS:

STAFF COMMENTS AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:

NB20231220-03

SUB 23-02 – Application for a Application for a Major Subdivision - Consolidation Plat for 
6630-6654 Delmar Boulevard.

John L. Wagner Planning and Development

New Bus - Bill 9534 yes

I concur with the Planning Commission's recommendation.

N/A

N/A

The Plan Commission considered the Consolidation Plat for the Subtext development at the 
October 25, 2023 meeting. Staff indicated that the Final Plat meets all requirements of 
Sections 405.165 and 405.380 of the Subdivision and Land Development Regulations and 
recommended approval. The plat to consolidate the five (5) lots into one lot was approved 
unanimously by the Plan Commission. 

Attached are the Plan Commission Transmittal Letter, Staff Report from the October 25, 2023 Plan 
Commission meeting - amended to include for the City Council the Plan Commission's 
recommendation, and a Draft Ordinance. 

Economic Development, Encourage High-quality Growth, Improved Infrastructure, 

City Manager, Gregrory Rose December 20, 2023

N - 3 - 1



  
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
October 25, 2023 
 
 
Ms. LaRette Reese 
City Clerk 
City of University City 
6801 Delmar Boulevard 
University City, MO 63130 
 
 
RE: Major Subdivision – Record Plat (SUB 23-02) 

 
Dear Ms. Reese, 
 
At a regularly scheduled meeting on October 25 25, 2023, at 6:30 p.m. at 975 
Pennsylvania Avenue (Community Center), the Plan Commission considered the 
application of Subtext Acquisitions, LLC for Final Plat Approval of a proposed major 
subdivision for 6630-6654 Delmar Boulevard.   
 
By a vote of 7 to 0, the Plan Commission recommended approval of said major 
subdivision. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Margaret Holly, Chairperson 
University City Plan Commission 
 

Plan Commission 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168   
 

N - 3 - 2



  
 
 
 
Department of Community Development 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-
6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168   
 

 
STAFF REPORT 

City Council 
 
MEETING DATE:   December 20, 2023 
 
FILE NUMBER:   SUB 23-02 
 
COUNCIL DISTRICT:   1 
 
Location:    6630-6654 Delmar Boulevard 
 
Applicant:    Subtext, LLC 
 
Request: Major Subdivision – Lot Consolidation  
 
Existing Zoning:   “CC” Core Commercial 
Proposed Zoning:   “PD-M” District (via REZ 23-02) 
Existing Land Use:   Vacant, commercial 
Proposed Land Use:   Multi-family residential, Elevator Apartments 
 
Surrounding Zoning and Land Use: 
North:     CC – Core Commercial 
East:      CC – Core Commercial 
South:     HR – High Density Residential 
West:      CC – Core Commercial    
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN CONFORMANCE 
[  ] Yes [  ] No   [ x ] No reference 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
[x] Approval    [  ] Approval with Conditions     [ ] Denial 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

A. Preliminary Plat 
 
Existing Property and Applicant Request 
The subject property is 1.981 acres in size. There are five (5) parcels that are proposed to be 
consolidated into a single lot to accommodate the Subtext Multi-family development. 
 
 
Staff Review  
Staff reviewed this as part of the “Major Subdivision” process identified in Section 405.165 of the 
Subdivision regulations.  
 N - 3 - 3



Analysis 
Staff has determined that the Plat meets all requirements of 405.380 of the Subdivision and 
Land Development Regulations.     
 
Conclusion/Recommendation 
The proposal meets the intent of all Zoning Code and Subdivision Regulation requirements for a 
Final Plat.  Thus, staff recommends approval of the proposed Major Subdivision. 
 
Plan Commission Meeting 
At the Plan Commission meeting on October 25, 2023, the Plan Commission voted 
unanimously to approve SUB 23-02. 
 
 

N - 3 - 4



INTRODUCED BY:________________     DATE:__________ 
 
BILL NO.: 95 34       ORDINANCE NO. 
 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL PLAT FOR A MAJOR SUBDIVISION OF A 
TRACT OF LAND TO BE KNOWN AS "LOCAL UNIVERSITY CITY." 

 

        WHEREAS, an application was submitted by Subtext Acquisitions, LLC for the approval 
of a final subdivision plat of a tract of land at 6630-6654 Delmar Boulevard to be known as 
"Local University City"; and 

        WHEREAS, at its meeting on October 25, 2023, the University City Plan Commission 
reviewed the final plat for the major subdivision and determined that the final plat is in 
substantial compliance with the requirements of the University City Municipal Code and 
recommended to the City Council approval of the final plat; and 

        WHEREAS, the final plat for the major subdivision application, including all required 
documents submitted therewith, is before the City Council for its consideration. 

        NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

        Section 1.    Attached, marked "Exhibit A", and made a part hereof is a final subdivision of 
a tract of land to be known as "Local University City." 

        Section 2.    It is hereby found and determined that the final plat for the major subdivision is 
in full compliance with the University City Municipal Code, including Sections 405.380 and 
405.390. Accordingly, the final plat for the major subdivision marked "Exhibit A" is hereby 
approved. 

        Section 3.    The City Clerk is hereby directed to endorse upon the final plat for the major 
subdivision the approval of the City Council under the hand of the City Clerk and the seal of the 
City of University City. 

        Section 4.    This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its passage as 
provided by law. 

 

      

N - 3 - 5



   PASSED and ADOPTED this 8th day of January, 2024. 

 
 

________________________________ 
MAYOR 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 

  CITY CLERK 
 
CERTIFIED TO BE CORRECT AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________________ 

 CITY ATTORNEY 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Exhibit A 

N - 3 - 6



 

N - 3 - 7



N - 3 - 8


	Observe and/or Listen to the Meeting (your options to join the meeting are below):
	Or One tap mobile :
	+19292056099,,84451675597# US (New York)
	+13017158592,,84451675597# US (Washington DC)
	Or Telephone:
	Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location):
	+1 309 205 3325 US
	+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)
	+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)
	Webinar ID: 844 5167 5597
	International numbers available: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kxkDDX6bT
	Citizen Participation and/or Public Hearing Comments:
	3. BILL 9534 - AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL PLAT FOR A MAJOR SUBDIVISION OF A TRACT OF LAND TO BE KNOWN AS "LOCAL UNIVERSITY CITY."
	K1 - ALL- Office 365 Renewal.pdf
	COPY
	Untitled
	Blank Page

	N1 - Bill 9532 - Text Amendment.pdf
	4. Bill  - TXT 23-04.pdf
	Blank Page

	N1 -  Cover.pdf
	COPY


	N2 - Bill 9533 - Map Amendment  Red.pdf
	4. Preliminary Plan.pdf
	SCAN2023-10-1112.05.476681
	6681.3_base-C02.0-EXISTING ALTA SURVEY
	6681.3_base-C02.0-EXISTING ALTA SURVEY

	6681.3_base-C03.0-PRELIMINARY-FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN
	6681.3_base-C03.0-PRELIMINARY-FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN

	6681.3_base-C04.0-SITE SECTIONS
	6681.3_base-C04.0-SITE SECTIONS

	6681.3_base-C05.0-EXISTING RUNOFF MAP
	6681.3_base-C05.0-EXISTING RUNOFF MAP

	6681.3_base-C06.0-PROPOSED RUNOFF MAP
	6681.3_base-C06.0-PROPOSED RUNOFF MAP


	5. Bill  - Subtext Map Amendment.pdf
	Blank Page

	N2 - Cover.pdf
	COPY

	Blank Page

	N3 - Bill 9534 - Plat Consolidation.pdf
	N3 - Cover.pdf
	COPY

	Blank Page

	N3 - Bill 9534 - Plat Consolidation.pdf
	N3 - Cover.pdf
	COPY

	Blank Page




